Consortium Agreement 29th June 2021¹

¹ this agreement is based on the DESCA Consortium template.

Table of Contents

| CONSORTIUM AGREEMENT | 5 |
|---|----------|
| Section 1: Definitions | 6 |
| 1.1.Definitions | 6 |
| 1.2.Additional Definitions | 7 |
| Section 2: Purpose | 7 |
| Section 3: Entry into force, duration and termination | 8 |
| 3.1. Entry into force | 8 |
| 3.2. Duration and termination | 8 |
| 3.3. Survival of rights and obligations | 8 |
| Section 4: Responsibilities of Parties | 8 |
| 4.1. General principles | 8 |
| 4.2. Breach | 9 |
| 4.3. Involvement of third parties | 9 |
| Section 5: Liability towards each other | 9 |
| 5.1. No warranties | 9 |
| 5.2. Limitations of contractual liability | 10 |
| 5.3. Damage caused to third parties | 10 |
| 5.4. Force Majeure | 10 |
| Section 6: Governance structure | 10 |
| 6.1. General structure | 10 |
| 6.2. Members | 11 |
| 6.3. Operational procedures for the General Assembly: | 11 |
| 6.3.1. Representation in meetings | 11 |
| 6.3.2. Preparation and organisation of meetings | 11 |
| 6.3.2.1. Convening meetings: | 11 |
| 6.3.2.2. Notice of a meeting | 12 |
| 6.3.2.3. Sending the agenda: | 12 |
| 6.3.2.4. Adding agenda items: | 12 |
| 6.3.3. Voting rules and quorum 6.3.4. Veto rights | 12 13 |
| 635. Minutes of meetings | 13 |
| 6.3.6.Decisions of the General Assembly | 14 |
| 6.4. Coordinator | 15 |
| Section 7: Financial provisions | 16 |
| 7.1. General Principles | 16 |
| 7.1.1. Distribution of Financial Contribution | 16 |
| Distribution of Finding Contribution | 10 |
| © DESCA - Horizon 2020 Model Consortium Agreement (<u>www.DESCA-2020.eu</u>), | |
| Version 1.2.4, October 2017 | 2/35 |

| 7.1.2. Justifying Costs | 16 |
|--|----|
| 7.1.3. Funding Principles | 16 |
| 7.1.4. Return of excess payments; receipts | 16 |
| 7.1.5. Financial Consequences of the termination of the participation of a Party | 17 |
| 7.2. Budgeting | 17 |
| 7.3. Payments | 17 |
| 7.3.1. Payments to Parties are the exclusive tasks of the Coordinator. | 17 |
| Section 8: Results | 18 |
| 8.1. Ownership of Results | 18 |
| 8.2. Joint ownership | 18 |
| 8.3. Transfer of Results | 18 |
| 8.4. Dissemination | 19 |
| 8.4.1. Dissemination of own Results | 19 |
| 8.4.2. Dissemination of another Party's unpublished Results or Background | 20 |
| 8.4.3. Cooperation obligations | 20 |
| 8.4.4. Use of names, logos or trademarks | 20 |
| Section 9: Access Rights | 20 |
| 9.1. Background included | 20 |
| 9.2. General Principles | 20 |
| 9.3. Access Rights for implementation | 21 |
| 9.4. Access Rights for Exploitation | 22 |
| 9.4.1. Access Rights to Results | 22 |
| 9.5. Additional Access Rights | 22 |
| 9.6. Access Rights for Parties entering or leaving the consortium | 22 |
| 9.6.1. New Parties entering the consortium | 22 |
| 9.6.2. Parties leaving the consortium | 22 |
| 9.6.2.1.Access Rights granted to a leaving Party | 22 |
| 9.6.2.1.1.Defaulting Party | 22 |
| 9.6.2.1.1. Non-defaulting Party | 22 |
| 9.6.3. Access Rights to be granted by any leaving Party | 23 |
| 9.7. Specific Provisions for Access Rights to Software | 23 |
| Section 10: Non-disclosure of information | 23 |
| Section 11: Miscellaneous | 24 |
| 11.1. Attachments, inconsistencies and severability | 24 |
| 11.2. No representation, partnership or agency | 25 |
| 11.3. Notices and other communication | 25 |
| 11.4. Assignment and amendments | 25 |
| 11.5. Mandatory national law | 25 |
| 11.6. Language | 26 |
| | |

| 11.7. Applicable law | 26 |
|-----------------------------------|----|
| 11.7.1. Settlement of disputes | 26 |
| Section 12: Signatures | 26 |
| Attachment 1: Background included | 30 |
| Attachment 2: Accession document | 35 |

CONSORTIUM AGREEMENT

THIS CONSORTIUM AGREEMENT is based upon

REGULATION (EU) No 1290/2013 OF THE EUROPEAN PARLIAMENT AND OF THE COUNCIL of 11 December 2013 laying down the rules for the participation and dissemination in "Horizon 2020 – the Framework Programme for Research and Innovation (2014-2020)" (hereinafter referred to as "Rules for Participation"), and the European Commission Multibeneficiary General Model Grant Agreement and its Annexes, and is made on June 29th 2021, hereinafter referred to as the Effective Date.

BETWEEN:

RETHINK IRELAND IRELAND²
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEES

Registration No: 529841

TRINITY TECHNOLOGY AND ENTERPRISE CAMPUS, UNIT 16 PEARSE STREET,

DUBLIN, D02YN67, IRELAND,

the Coordinator

Participant 1, Bulgarian Center for Not-for-Profit Law Foundation, Non-profit public benefit organization, Registration number: 130570377, legal seat and address 1000 Sofia, Bulgaria, 3 Hristo Belchev Str., floor 2, represented by Nadya Shabani, Director

Participant 2, SYNTHESIS Center for Research and Education Ltd, Registration number: HE 133359, and address Tagmatarchi Pouliou 33, 1101 Nicosia, Cyprus, represented by George Isaias, Director

Participant 3, The Change Foundation Registration number 176982609, legal seat and address 41, Hristofor Columb bul., 1592 Sofia, Bulgaria, represented by Kajsa Margareta Lennhammar Korsgren, Executive Director

Participant 4, Genio Trust, Irish registered charity (RCN 20075606, CHY 19312), 19-21 Westland Square, Pearse St., Dublin 2, D02 YH27, Ireland, represented by Madeleine Clarke, Executive Director

Participant 5, Agência para o Desenvolvimento e Coesão, I.P. (Cohesion and Development Agency), public entity (ESF Managing Authority), Registration nº: 510928374, legal seat and address Avenida 5 de Outubro, 153 – 1050-050, Lisbon, represented by Nuno Manuel Oliveira dos Santos, President of the Board

Participant 6, BCause Foundation, Registration number 121029426, legal seat and address: 65, Vitosha blvd, 1000 Sofia, Bulgaria, represented by Elitsa Barakova, Executive Director

² legal name Social Innovation Growth Fund Ireland as per Grant Agreement.

[©] *DESCA* - Horizon 2020 Model Consortium Agreement (<u>www.DESCA-2020.eu</u>), Version 1.2.4, October 2017

Participant 7, Cleantech Bulgaria Ltd, Registration number 203637577, legal seat and address: 18 Krakra str, 1504 Sofia, Bulgaria, represented by Mariyana Hamanova, Executive Director

Participant 8, The Business Institute Ltd., Registration number 203719316, legal seat and address: 99 Knyaz Boris I str., 1301 Sofia, Bulgaria, represented by Tsvetelina Teneva, General Manager

Participant 9, CSI Center for Social Innovation Ltd, Registration number: HE365601, legal seat and address Rigenis 62, Nicosia, 1010, Cyprus, represented by Demetris Hadjisofocli, Managing Director

hereinafter, jointly or individually, referred to as "Parties" or "Party"

relating to the Action entitled

ESF+ Network of Competence Centres for Social Innovation (ENCCSI)

in short

VS-2021-0157 (Grant Agreement Number)

hereinafter referred to as "Project"

WHEREAS:

The Parties, having considerable experience in the field concerned, have submitted a proposal for the Project to the Funding Authority as part of the European Union Programme for Competence Centres for social innovation (European Social Fund and European Programme for Employment and Social Innovation) - Action ESF+ Network of Competence Centres for Social Innovation (ENCCSI).

The Parties wish to specify or supplement binding commitments among themselves in addition to the provisions of the specific Grant Agreement to be signed by the Parties and the Funding Authority (hereinafter "Grant Agreement").

The Parties are aware that this Consortium Agreement is based upon the DESCA model consortium agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY AGREED AS FOLLOWS:

1 Section: Definitions

1.1 Definitions

Words beginning with a capital letter shall have the meaning defined either herein or in the Rules for Participation or in the Grant Agreement including its Annexes.

© DESCA - Horizon 2020 Model Consortium Agreement (<u>www.DESCA-2020.eu</u>),

1.2 Additional Definitions

"Consortium Body":

Consortium Body means any management body described in the Governance Structure section of this Consortium Agreement.

"Consortium Plan"

Consortium Plan means the description of the action and the related agreed budget as first defined in the Grant Agreement and which may be updated by the General Assembly.

"Funding Authority"

Funding Authority means the body awarding the grant for the Project.

"Defaulting Party"

Defaulting Party means a Party which the General Assembly has identified to be in breach of this Consortium Agreement and/or the Grant Agreement as specified in Section 4.2 of this Consortium Agreement.

"Needed"

means:

For the implementation of the Project:

Access Rights are Needed if, without the grant of such Access Rights, carrying out the tasks assigned to the recipient Party would be technically or legally impossible, significantly delayed, or require significant additional financial or human resources.

For Exploitation of own Results:

Access Rights are Needed if, without the grant of such Access Rights, the Exploitation of own Results would be technically or legally impossible.

"Project Manager"

The Project Manager leads and manages the project's overall technical aspects, its design and implementation and leads on the PCT meetings.

"Software"

Software means sequences of instructions to carry out a process in, or convertible into, a form executable by a computer and fixed in any tangible medium of expression.

2 Section: Purpose

The purpose of this Consortium Agreement is to specify with respect to the Project the mutual responsibilities, accountabilities and relationship among the Parties, in particular concerning the organisation of the work between the Parties, the management of the Project and the rights and obligations of the Parties concerning inter alia liability, Access Rights and dispute resolution.

© DESCA - Horizon 2020 Model Consortium Agreement (www.DESCA-2020.eu),

3 Section: Entry into force, duration and termination

3.1 Entry into force

An entity becomes a Party to this Consortium Agreement upon signature of this Consortium Agreement by a duly authorised representative.

This Consortium Agreement shall have effect from the Effective Date identified at the beginning of this Consortium Agreement.

A new entity becomes a Party to the Consortium Agreement upon signature of the accession document (Attachment 2) by the new Party and the Coordinator. Such accession shall have effect from the date identified in the accession document.

3.2 Duration and termination

This Consortium Agreement shall become effective upon signature by the authorised parties and will remain in effect until the complete fulfilment of all obligations undertaken by the Parties under the Grant Agreement and under this Consortium Agreement.

This Consortium Agreement or the participation of one or more Parties to it may be terminated in accordance with the terms of this Consortium Agreement.

lf

- the Grant Agreement is not signed by the Funding Authority or a Party, or
- the Grant Agreement is terminated, or
- a Party's participation in the Grant Agreement is terminated,

this Consortium Agreement shall automatically terminate in respect of the affected Party/ies, subject to the provisions surviving the expiration or termination under Section 3.3 of this Consortium Agreement.

3.3 Survival of rights and obligations

The provisions relating to Access Rights, Dissemination and confidentiality, for the time period mentioned therein, as well as for liability, applicable law and settlement of disputes shall survive the expiration or termination of this Consortium Agreement.

Termination shall not affect any rights or obligations of a Party leaving the Consortium incurred prior to the date of termination, unless otherwise agreed between the General Assembly and the leaving Party. This includes the obligation to provide all input, deliverables and documents for the period of its participation.

4 Section: Responsibilities of Parties

4.1 General principles

Each Party undertakes to take part in the efficient implementation of the Project, and to cooperate, perform and fulfil, promptly and on time, all of its obligations under the Grant

© DESCA - Horizon 2020 Model Consortium Agreement (www.DESCA-2020.eu),

Agreement and this Consortium Agreement as may be reasonably required from it and in a manner of good faith as prescribed by Belgian law.

Each Party shall provide all information required by the Coordinator to carry out the tasks of reporting to the Commission.

Each Party undertakes to notify promptly, in accordance with the governance structure of the Project, any significant information, fact, problem or delay likely to affect the Project.

Each Party shall promptly provide all information reasonably required by a Consortium Body or by the Coordinator to carry out its tasks.

Each Party shall take reasonable measures to ensure the accuracy of any information or materials it supplies to the other Parties.

In line with the EU Grant Agreement Article I.8, the following entity is considered as affiliated entity for the purpose of the Agreement: Portugal Social Innovation Mission Unit, affiliated to AGENCIA PARA O DESENVOLVIMIENTO E COESAO IP.

4.2 Breach

In the event that a responsible Consortium Body identifies a breach by a Party of its obligations under this Consortium Agreement or the Grant Agreement (e.g. improper implementation of the project), the Coordinator or, if the Coordinator is in breach of its obligations, the Party appointed by the General Assembly, will give formal notice to such Party requiring that such breach will be remedied within 30 calendar days from the date of receipt of the written notice by the Party.

If such breach is substantial and is not remedied within that period or is not capable of remedy, the General Assembly may decide to declare the Party to be a Defaulting Party and to decide on the consequences thereof which may include termination of its participation.

4.3 Involvement of third parties

A Party that enters into a subcontract or otherwise involves third parties (including but not limited to Affiliated Entities) in the Project remains responsible for carrying out its relevant part of the Project and for such third party's compliance with the provisions of this Consortium Agreement and of the Grant Agreement. It has to ensure that the involvement of third parties does not affect the rights and obligations of the other Parties under this Consortium Agreement and the Grant Agreement.

5 Section: Liability towards each other

5.1 No warranties

In respect of any information or materials (incl. Results and Background) supplied by one Party to another under the Project, no warranty or representation of any kind is made, given or implied as to the sufficiency or fitness for purpose nor as to the absence of any infringement of any proprietary rights of third parties.

Therefore,

the recipient Party shall in all cases be entirely and solely liable for the use to which it
puts such information and materials, and

 no Party granting Access Rights shall be liable in case of infringement of proprietary rights of a third party resulting from any other Party (or its Affiliated Entities) exercising its Access Rights.

5.2 Limitations of contractual liability

No Party shall be responsible to any other Party for any indirect or consequential loss or similar damage such as, but not limited to, loss of profit, loss of revenue or loss of contracts, provided such damage was not caused by a willful act or by a breach of confidentiality.

For any remaining contractual liability, a Party's aggregate liability towards the other Parties collectively shall be limited to once the Party's share of the total costs of the Project as identified in Annex 2 of the Grant Agreement provided such damage was not caused by a wilful act or gross negligence.

The terms of this Consortium Agreement shall not be construed to amend or limit any Party's statutory liability.

5.3 Damage caused to third parties

Each Party shall be solely liable for any loss, damage or injury to third parties resulting from the performance of the said Party's obligations by it or on its behalf under this Consortium Agreement or from its use of Results or Background.

5.4 Force Majeure

No Party shall be considered to be in breach of this Consortium Agreement if it is prevented from fulfilling its obligations under the Consortium Agreement by Force Majeure.

Each Party will notify the competent Consortium Bodies of any Force Majeure without undue delay. If the consequences of Force Majeure for the Project are not overcome within 6 weeks after such notification, the transfer of tasks - if any - shall be decided by the competent Consortium Bodies.

5.5. General Obligations

All parties warrant that signatories have full power and authority and all necessary resources to carry out the project;

All parties warrant that they will comply with the purpose and responsibilities as outlined in this agreement;

All parties warrant that funding provided will be used for the sole purpose of the project as outlined in the appended Grant Agreement and associated Annexes.

6 Section Governance structure

The Consortium consists of two Project Management Bodies, the Project Coordination Team (PCT) and the Executive Committee.

6.1 General structure

The PCT is the technical design decision-making body of the consortium.

The Executive Committee ensures the project's strategic coordination and oversees the overall Project. It acts as the Consortium's strategic management body.

The Coordinator is the legal entity acting as the intermediary between the Parties and the Funding Authority. The Coordinator shall, in addition to its responsibilities as a Party, perform the tasks assigned to it as described in the Grant Agreement and this Consortium Agreement.

6.2 Members

The PCT will be chaired by the Project Manager who will facilitate mitigation and elimination of technical issues across WP activities and deliverables and it is composed by one representative of each party. Conference calls will take place on a monthly basis. A member of Rethink Ireland's Finance Team will participate every 6 months to keep a clear overview of the budget.

The Executive Committee is composed by one representative per partner and will include duly authorised persons from the appointed partners.

Each Member shall be deemed to be duly authorised to deliberate, negotiate and decide on all matters listed in Section 6.3.6 of this Consortium Agreement.

The Coordinator shall chair all meetings, unless decided otherwise by the relevant body.

The Parties agree to abide by all decisions of the Executive Committee.

This does not prevent the Parties from submitting a dispute for resolution in accordance with the provisions of settlement of disputes in Section 11.8 of this Consortium Agreement.

6.3 **Operational procedures:**

6.3.1 Representation in meetings

Any Member:

- should be present or represented at any meeting;
- may appoint a substitute or a proxy to attend and vote at any meeting;
- and shall participate in a cooperative manner in the meetings.

6.3.2 Preparation and organisation of meetings

6.3.2.1 Convening meetings:

The Project Manager shall convene ordinary meetings of the PCT at least once every month and shall also convene extraordinary meetings at any time upon written request of any Member. The Executive Committee shall be convened every three months by the Project Coordinator.

6.3.2.2 Notice of a meeting

The Project Manager shall give notice in writing of a meeting to each Member as soon as possible and no later than 14 calendar days preceding an ordinary meeting and 7 calendar days preceding an extraordinary meeting.

6.3.2.3 Sending the agenda:

The Project Coordinator shall prepare and send each Member a written original agenda no later than 14 calendar days preceding the meeting, or 7 calendar days before an extraordinary meeting.

6.3.2.4 Adding agenda items:

Any agenda item requiring a decision by the Members must be identified as such on the agenda.

Any Member may add an item to the original agenda by written notification to all of the other Members no later than 7 calendar days preceding the meeting.

6.3.2.5

During a meeting the Members present or represented can unanimously agree to add a new item to the original agenda.

6.3.2.6

Parties agree that meetings can be online or in-person as is practicable. Meetings may also be held by teleconference or other telecommunication means.

6.3.2.7

Decisions will only be binding once the relevant part of the minutes has been accepted according to Section 6.3.5

6.3.2.8

Any decision may also be taken without a meeting if the Coordinator circulates to all Members of the Consortium Body a written document, which is then agreed by the defined majority (see Section 6.3.3) of all Members of the Consortium Body. Such document shall include the deadline for responses.

Decisions taken without a meeting shall be considered as accepted if, within the period set out in article 6.3.4.4, no Member has sent an objection in writing to the Project Manager. The decisions will be binding after the Project Coordinator sends to all Members of the Consortium Body and to the Project Manager a written notification of this acceptance.

6.3.3 Voting rules and quorum

6.3.3.1

The Executive Committee shall not deliberate and decide validly unless two-thirds (2/3) of its Members are present or represented (quorum).

If the quorum is not reached, the chairperson of the Executive Committee shall convene another ordinary meeting within 15 calendar days. If in this meeting the quorum is not reached once more, the chairperson shall convene an extraordinary meeting which shall be entitled to decide even if less than the quorum of Members are present or represented.

6.3.3.2

Each Member present or represented in the meeting shall have one vote.

6.3.3.3

A Party which has been declared according to Section 4.2 to be a Defaulting Party may not vote.

6.3.3.4

Decisions shall be taken by a majority of two-thirds (2/3) of the votes cast.

6.3.4 Veto rights

6.3.4.1

A Member which can show that its own work, time for performance, costs, liabilities, intellectual property rights or other legitimate interests would be severely affected by a decision may exercise a veto with respect to the corresponding decision or relevant part of the decision.

6.3.4.2

When the decision is foreseen on the original agenda, a Member may veto such a decision during the meeting only.

6.3.4.3

When a decision has been taken on a new item added to the agenda before or during the meeting, a Member may veto such decision during the meeting and within 15 calender days after the draft minutes of the meeting are sent.

6.3.4.4

When a decision has been taken without a meeting a Member may veto such decision within 15 calendar days after written notification by the Project Manager of the outcome if the vote.

6.3.4.5

In case of exercise of veto, the Members shall make every effort to resolve the matter which occasioned the veto to the general satisfaction of all Members.

6.3.4.6

A Party may neither veto decisions relating to its identification to be in breach of its obligations nor to its identification as a Defaulting Party. The Defaulting Party may not veto decisions relating to its participation and termination in the consortium or the consequences of them.

6.3.4.7

A Party requesting to leave the consortium may not veto decisions relating thereto.

6.3.5 Minutes of meetings

6.3.5.1

The Project Coordinator shall produce written minutes of each meeting which shall be the formal record of all decisions taken. He shall send draft minutes to all Members within 10 calendar days of the meeting.

6.3.5.2

The minutes shall be considered as accepted if, within 15 calendar days from sending, no Member has sent an objection in writing to the Project Coordinator with respect to the accuracy of the draft of the minutes.

6.3.5.3

The Project Manager shall send the accepted minutes to all the members, and to the Project Manager, who shall safeguard them. If requested the Project Manager shall provide authenticated duplicates to Parties.

6.3.6 Decisions of the Governing Bodies

The *governing bodies* shall be free to act on its own initiative to formulate proposals and take decisions in accordance with the procedures set out herein.

The following decisions shall be taken by the Executive Committee:

Content, finances and intellectual property rights

- Proposals for changes to Annexes 1 and 2 of the Grant Agreement to be agreed by the Funding Authority
- Changes to the Consortium Plan
- Modifications to Attachment 1 (Background Included)
- Additions to Attachment 3 (List of Third Parties for simplified transfer according to Section 8.3.2)
- Additions to Attachment 4 (Identified Affiliated Entities)

Evolution of the consortium

- Entry of a new Party to the consortium and approval of the settlement on the conditions of the accession of such a new Party
- Withdrawal of a Party from the consortium and the approval of the settlement on the conditions of the withdrawal
- Identification of a breach by a Party of its obligations under this Consortium Agreement or the Grant Agreement
- Declaration of a Party to be a Defaulting Party
- Remedies to be performed by a Defaulting Party
- Termination of a Defaulting Party's participation in the consortium and measures relating thereto
- Proposal to the Funding Authority for a change of the Coordinator
- Proposal to the Funding Authority for suspension of all or part of the Project
- Proposal to the Funding Authority for termination of the Project and the Consortium Agreement

In the case of abolished tasks as a result of a decision of the Executive Committee, Members shall rearrange the tasks of the Parties concerned. Such rearrangement shall take into

© DESCA - Horizon 2020 Model Consortium Agreement (www.DESCA-2020.eu),

consideration the legitimate commitments taken prior to the decisions, which cannot be cancelled.

6.3.7 Conflicts of interest

Parties shall declare if they have interests that conflict with the interests of the Project. Where this occurs parties should declare any conflict of interest that arises. This will be recorded in the minutes of the relevant meeting and that member will exclude himself/herself from discussions and decisions related to that Agenda item.

6.4 **Project Coordinator**

6.4.1

The Project Coordinator shall be the intermediary between the Parties and the Funding Authority and shall perform all tasks assigned to it as described in the Grant Agreement and in this Consortium Agreement.

6.4.2

In particular, the Coordinator shall be responsible for:

- monitoring compliance by the Parties with their obligations
- keeping the address list of Members and other contact persons updated and available
- collecting, reviewing to verify consistency and submitting reports, other deliverables (including financial statements and related certification) and specific requested documents to the Funding Authority
- preparing the meetings, proposing decisions and preparing the agenda of General Assembly meetings, chairing the meetings, preparing the minutes of the meetings and monitoring the implementation of decisions taken at meetings
- transmitting promptly documents and information connected with the Project to any other Party concerned,
- administering the financial contribution of the Funding Authority and fulfilling the financial tasks described in Section 7.3
- providing, upon request, the Parties with official copies or originals of documents that are
 in the sole possession of the Coordinator when such copies or originals are necessary for
 the Parties to present claims.

If one or more of the Parties is late in submission of any project deliverable, the Coordinator may nevertheless submit the other parties' project deliverables and all other documents required by the Grant Agreement to the Funding Authority in time.

6.4.3

If the Coordinator fails in its coordination tasks, the Executive Committee may propose to the Funding Authority to change the Coordinator.

6.4.4

The Coordinator shall not be entitled to act or to make legally binding declarations on behalf of any other Party or of the consortium, unless explicitly stated otherwise in the Grant Agreement or this Consortium Agreement.

6.4.5

The Coordinator shall not enlarge its role beyond the tasks specified in this Consortium Agreement and in the Grant Agreement.

7 Section: Financial provisions

7.1 General Principles

7.1.1 Distribution of Financial Contribution

The financial contribution of the Funding Authority to the Project shall be distributed by the Coordinator according to:

- the Consortium Plan
- the approval of reports by the Funding Authority, and
- the provisions of payment in Section 7.3.

A Party shall be funded only for its tasks carried out in accordance with the Consortium Plan.

7.1.2 Justifying Costs

In accordance with its own usual accounting and management principles and practices, each Party shall be solely responsible for justifying its costs with respect to the Project towards the Funding Authority. Neither the Coordinator nor any of the other Parties shall be in any way liable or responsible for such justification of costs towards the Funding Authority.

7.1.3 Funding Principles

A Party that spends less than its allocated share of the budget as set out in the Consortium Plan or – in case of reimbursement via unit costs - implements less units than foreseen in the Consortium Plan will be funded in accordance with its actual duly justified eligible costs only.

A Party that spends more than its allocated share of the budget as set out in the Consortium Plan will be funded only in respect of duly justified eligible costs up to an amount not exceeding that share.

7.1.4 Return of excess payments; receipts

7.1.4.1

In any case of a Party having received excess payments, the Party has to return the relevant amount to the Coordinator without undue delay.

7.1.4.2

In case a Party earns any receipt that is deductible from the total funding as set out in the Consortium Plan, the deduction is only directed toward the Party earning such income. The other Parties' financial share of the budget shall not be affected by one Party's receipt. In case the relevant receipt is more than the allocated share of the Party as set out in the Consortium Plan, the Party shall reimburse the funding reduction suffered by other Parties.

7.1.5 Financial Consequences of the termination of the participation of a Party

A Party leaving the consortium shall refund all payments it has received except the amount of contribution accepted by the Funding Authority or another contributor. Furthermore a Defaulting Party shall, within the limits specified in Section 5.2 of this Consortium Agreement, bear any reasonable and justifiable additional costs occurring to the other Parties in order to perform its and their tasks.

7.2 **Budgeting**

The budget set out in the Consortium Plan shall be valued in accordance with the usual accounting and management principles and practices of the respective Parties.

7.3 **Payments**

7.3.1 Payments to Parties are the exclusive tasks of the Coordinator.

In particular, the Coordinator shall:

- notify the Party concerned promptly of the date and composition of the amount transferred to its bank account, giving the relevant references
- perform diligently its tasks in the proper administration of any funds and in maintaining financial accounts
- undertake to keep the Funding Authority's financial contribution to the Project separated from its normal business accounts, its own assets and property, except if the Coordinator is a Public Body or is not entitled to do so due to statutory legislation.
- With reference to Article I 5.4 and I 5.5 of the Grant Agreement, no Party shall before the end of the Project receive more than its allocated share of the maximum grant amount from which the amounts retained by the Funding Authority for the Guarantee Fund and for the final payment have been deducted.
- The Coordinator will distribute funding received by the Funding Authority proportionate to the total costs of the action Party amounts included in the estimated signed budget (VS-2021-0157) of the Grant Agreement. The Coordinator endeavours to distribute this funding within one month of receiving it subject to the timely receipt of a Party invoice or Payment request.

7.3.2

The payment schedule, which contains the transfer of pre-financing and interim payments to Parties, will be handled according to the following:

Funding of costs included in the Consortium Plan will be paid to Parties after receipt from the Funding Authority without undue delay and in conformity with the provisions of the Grant Agreement. Costs accepted by the Funding Authority will be paid to the Party concerned.

The Coordinator is entitled to withhold any payments due to a Party identified by a responsible Consortium Body to be in breach of its obligations under this Consortium Agreement or the Grant Agreement or to a Beneficiary which has not yet signed this Consortium Agreement.

The Coordinator is entitled to recover any payments already paid to a Defaulting Party. The Coordinator is equally entitled to withhold payments to a Party when this is suggested by or agreed with the Funding Authority.

8 Section: Results

8.1 Ownership of Results

Results are owned by the Party that generates them.

8.2 Joint ownership

Joint ownership is governed by Grant Agreement Article I 9.1. with the following additions:

Where several Parties have jointly carried out work generating Results and where their respective share of the work cannot be ascertained, they shall have joint ownership of such Results.

Where joint ownership exists, the Parties jointly owning Results ("the Co-owners") undertake to make their best efforts to establish a written co-ownership agreement regarding the allocation and terms of exercising such joint ownership, as soon as possible as of the date of generation of the joint Results, and in any case before prior to seeking any formal registration or incurring costs in respect of such jointly owned Results.

The share of each of the Co-owners to the development of such joint-Results shall be defined between the Co-owners proportionally to the resources contributed by each Co-owner whether human, financial or intellectual.

Unless otherwise agreed:

- each of the joint owners shall be entitled to use their jointly owned Results for non-commercial research activities on a royalty-free basis, non-exclusive, non-transferable basis and without requiring the prior consent of the other joint owner(s), and
- unless otherwise agreed in writing, the joint owners may use the jointly owned Results for commercial purposes only with the prior written agreement of all joint owners, and
- each of the joint owners shall be entitled to otherwise Exploit the jointly owned Results and to grant non-exclusive licenses to third parties (without any right to sub-license), if the other joint owners are given:
 - (a) at least 45 calendar days advance notice; and
 - (b) Fair and Reasonable compensation.

8.3 Transfer of Results

8.3.1

Each Party may transfer ownership of its own Results to another party. The party must however ensure that their obligations (regarding the results) apply to the new owner and that this new owner would pass them on in any subsequent transfer.

8.3.2

The transferring Party shall, however, at the time of the transfer, inform the other Parties of such transfer and shall ensure that the rights of the other Parties will not be affected by such transfer. Any addition to Attachment (3) after signature of this Agreement requires a decision of the General Assembly.

8.3.3

The Parties recognize that in the framework of a merger or an acquisition of an important part of its assets, it may be impossible under applicable EU and national laws on mergers and acquisitions for a Party to give the full 45 calendar days prior notice for the transfer as foreseen in the Grant Agreement.

8.3.4

The obligations above apply only for as long as other Parties still have - or still may request - Access Rights to the Results.

8.4 Dissemination

8.4.1

For the avoidance of doubt, nothing in this Section 8.4 has impact on the confidentiality obligations set out in Section 10.

8.4.2 Dissemination of own Results

8.4.2.1

During the Project and for a period of 1 year after the end of the Project, the dissemination of own Results by one or several Parties including but not restricted to publications and presentations, shall be governed by the procedure of Article II.9. of the Grant Agreement subject to the following provisions.

Prior notice of any planned publication shall be given to the other Parties at least 45 calendar days before the publication. Any objection to the planned publication shall be made in accordance with the Grant Agreement in writing to the Coordinator and to the Party or Parties proposing the dissemination within 30 calendar days after receipt of the notice. If no objection is made within the time limit stated above, the publication is permitted.

8.4.2.2

An objection is justified if

- (a) the protection of the objecting Party's Results or Background would be adversely affected
- (b) the objecting Party's legitimate interests in relation to the Results or Background would be significantly harmed.

The objection has to include a precise request for necessary modifications.

8.4.2.3

If an objection has been raised the involved Parties shall discuss how to overcome the justified grounds for the objection on a timely basis (for example by amendment to the planned publication and/or by protecting information before publication) and the objecting Party shall not unreasonably continue the opposition if appropriate measures are taken following the discussion.

8.5

The objecting Party can request a publication delay of not more than 90 calendar days from the time it raises such an objection. After 90 calendar days the publication is permitted.

8.5.1 Dissemination of another Party's unpublished Results or Background

A Party shall not include in any dissemination activity another Party's Results or Background without obtaining the owning Party's prior written approval, unless they are already published.

8.5.2 Cooperation obligations

The Parties undertake to cooperate to allow the timely submission, examination, publication and defence of any dissertation or thesis for a degree that includes their Results or Background subject to the confidentiality and publication provisions agreed in this Consortium Agreement.

8.5.3 Use of names, logos or trademarks

Nothing in this Consortium Agreement shall be construed as conferring rights to use in advertising, publicity or otherwise the name of the Parties or any of their logos or trademarks without their prior written approval.

9 Section: Access Rights

9.1 Background included

9.1.1

In Attachment 1, the Parties have identified and agreed on the Background for the Project and have also, where relevant, informed each other that Access to specific Background is subject to legal restrictions or limits.

Anything not identified in Attachment 1 shall not be the object of Access Right obligations regarding Background.

9.1.2

Any Party may add further own Background to Attachment 1 during the Project by written notice to the other Parties. However, approval of the General Assembly is needed should a Party wish to modify or withdraw its Background in Attachment 1.

9.2 **General Principles**

9.2.1

Each Party shall implement its tasks in accordance with the Consortium Plan and shall bear sole responsibility for ensuring that its acts within the Project do not knowingly infringe third party property rights.

9.2.2

Any Access Rights granted expressly exclude any rights to sublicense unless expressly stated otherwise.

9.2.3

Access Rights shall be free of any administrative transfer costs.

9.2.4

Access Rights are granted on a non-exclusive basis.

9.2.5

Results and Background shall be used only for the purposes for which Access Rights to it have been granted.

9.2.6

All requests for Access Rights shall be made in writing. The granting of Access Rights may be made conditional on the acceptance of specific conditions aimed at ensuring that these rights will be used only for the intended purpose and that appropriate confidentiality obligations are in place.

9.2.7

The requesting Party must show that the Access Rights are Needed and indicate the specific intended purpose.

9.3 Access Rights for implementation

Access Rights to Results and Background Needed for the performance of the own work of a Party under the Project shall be granted on a royalty-free basis, unless otherwise agreed for Background in Attachment 1.

9.4 Access Rights for Exploitation

9.4.1 Access Rights to Results

Access Rights to Results if Needed for Exploitation of a Party's own Results shall be granted on Fair and Reasonable conditions.

Access rights to Results for internal non-profit research activities shall be granted on a royalty-free basis.

9.4.2

Access Rights to Background if Needed for Exploitation of a Party's own Results, including for research on behalf of a third party, shall be granted on Fair and Reasonable conditions.

9.4.3

A request for Access Rights may be made up to twelve months after the end of the Project or, in the case of Section 9.7.2.1.2, after the termination of the requesting Party's participation in the Project.

9.5 Additional Access Rights

For the avoidance of doubt any grant of Access Rights not covered by the Grant Agreement or this Consortium Agreement shall be at the absolute discretion of the owning Party and subject to such terms and conditions as may be agreed between the owning and receiving Parties.

9.6 Access Rights for Parties entering or leaving the consortium

9.6.1 New Parties entering the consortium

As regards Results developed before the accession of the new Party, the new Party will be granted Access Rights on the conditions applying for Access Rights to Background.

9.6.2 Parties leaving the consortium

9.6.2.1 Access Rights granted to a leaving Party

9.6.2.1.1 Defaulting Party

Access Rights granted to a Defaulting Party and such Party's right to request Access Rights shall cease immediately upon receipt by the Defaulting Party of the formal notice of the decision of the General Assembly to terminate its participation in the consortium.

9.6.2.1.2 Non-defaulting Party

A non-defaulting Party leaving voluntarily and with the other Parties' consent shall have Access Rights to the Results developed until the date of the termination of its participation. It may request Access Rights within the period of time specified in Section 9.4.3.

9.6.2.2 Access Rights to be granted by any leaving Party

Any Party leaving the Project shall continue to grant Access Rights pursuant to the Grant Agreement and this Consortium Agreement as if it had remained a Party for the whole duration of the Project.

9.7 Specific Provisions for Access Rights to Software

For the avoidance of doubt, the general provisions for Access Rights provided for in this Section 9 are applicable also to Software.

Parties' Access Rights to Software do not include any right to receive source code or object code ported to a certain hardware platform or any right to receive respective Software documentation in any particular form or detail, but only as available from the Party granting the Access Rights.

10 Section: Non-disclosure of information

10.1

All information in whatever form or mode of communication, which is disclosed by a Party (the "Disclosing Party") to any other Party (the "Recipient") in connection with the Project during its implementation and which has been explicitly marked as "confidential" at the time of disclosure, or when disclosed orally has been identified as confidential at the time of disclosure and has been confirmed and designated in writing within 15 calendar days from oral disclosure at the latest as confidential information by the Disclosing Party, is "Confidential Information".

10.2

The Recipients hereby undertake in addition and without prejudice to any commitment on non-disclosure under the Grand Agreement, for a period of 4 years after the end of the Project:

- Not to use Confidential Information otherwise than for the purpose for which it was disclosed;
- not to disclose Confidential Information without the prior written consent by the Disclosing Party;
- to ensure that internal distribution of Confidential Information by a Recipient shall take place on a strict need-to-know basis; and
- to return to the Disclosing Party, or destroy, on request all Confidential Information that has been disclosed to the Recipients including all copies thereof and to delete all information stored in a machine readable form to the extent practically possible. The Recipients may keep a copy to the extent it is required to keep, archive or store such Confidential Information because of compliance with applicable laws and regulations or for the proof of on-going obligations provided that the Recipient comply with the confidentiality obligations herein contained with respect to such copy for as long as the copy is retained.

10.3

The recipients shall be responsible for the fulfilment of the above obligations on the part of their employees or third parties involved in the Project and shall ensure that they remain so

obliged, as far as legally possible, during and after the end of the Project and/or after the termination of the contractual relationship with the employee or third party.

10.4

The above shall not apply for disclosure or use of Confidential Information, if and in so far as the Recipient can show that:

- the Confidential Information has become or becomes publicly available by means other than a breach of the Recipient's confidentiality obligations;
- the Disclosing Party subsequently informs the Recipient that the Confidential Information is no longer confidential;
- the Confidential Information is communicated to the Recipient without any obligation of confidentiality by a third party who is to the best knowledge of the Recipient in lawful possession thereof and under no obligation of confidentiality to the Disclosing Party;
- the disclosure or communication of the Confidential Information is foreseen by provisions of the Grant Agreement;
- the Confidential Information, at any time, was developed by the Recipient completely independently of any such disclosure by the Disclosing Party;
- the Confidential Information was already known to the Recipient prior to disclosure, or
- the Recipient is required to disclose the Confidential Information in order to comply with applicable laws or regulations or with a court or administrative order, subject to the provision Section 10.7 hereunder.

10.5

The Recipient shall apply the same degree of care with regard to the Confidential Information disclosed within the scope of the Project as with its own confidential and/or proprietary information, but in no case less than reasonable care

10.6

Each Party shall promptly advise the other Party in writing of any unauthorised disclosure, misappropriation or misuse of Confidential Information after it becomes aware of such unauthorised disclosure, misappropriation or misuse.

10.7

If any Party becomes aware that it will be required, or is likely to be required, to disclose Confidential Information in order to comply with applicable laws or regulations or with a court or administrative order, it shall, to the extent it is lawfully able to do so, prior to any such disclosure

- notify the Disclosing Party, and
- comply with the Disclosing Party's reasonable instructions to protect the confidentiality of the information.

11 Section: Miscellaneous

11.1 Attachments, inconsistencies and severability

This Consortium Agreement consists of this core text and

Attachment 1 (Background included)

Attachment 2 (Accession document)

In case the terms of this Consortium Agreement are in conflict with the terms of the Grant Agreement, the terms of the latter shall prevail. In case of conflicts between the attachments and the core text of this Consortium Agreement, the latter shall prevail.

Should any provision of this Consortium Agreement become invalid, illegal or unenforceable, it shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions of this Consortium Agreement. In such a case, the Parties concerned shall be entitled to request that a valid and practicable provision be negotiated that fulfils the purpose of the original provision.

11.2 No representation, partnership or agency

Except as otherwise provided in Section 6.4.4, no Party shall be entitled to act or to make legally binding declarations on behalf of any other Party or of the consortium. Nothing in this Consortium Agreement shall be deemed to constitute a joint venture, agency, partnership, interest grouping or any other kind of formal business grouping or entity between the Parties.

11.3 Notices and other communication

Any notice to be given under this Consortium Agreement shall be in writing to the addresses and recipients as listed in the most current address list kept by the Coordinator.

Media communications to be made by any Party on behalf of the Consortium or relating to the work of the Consortium should be agreed in advance.

Formal notices:

If it is required in this Consortium Agreement (Sections 4.2, 9.7.2.1.1, and 11.4) that a formal notice, consent or approval shall be given, such notice shall be signed by an authorised representative of a Party and shall either be served personally or sent by mail with recorded delivery or telefax with receipt acknowledgement.

Other communication:

Other communication between the Parties may also be effected by other means such as e-mail with acknowledgement of receipt, which fulfils the conditions of written form.

Any change of persons or contact details shall be notified immediately by the respective Party to the Coordinator. The address list shall be accessible to all Parties.

11.4 Assignment and amendments

Except as set out in Section 8.3, no rights or obligations of the Parties arising from this Consortium Agreement may be assigned or transferred, in whole or in part, to any third party without the other Parties' prior formal approval. Amendments and modifications to the text of this Consortium Agreement not explicitly listed in Section 6.3.6 require a separate written agreement to be signed between all Parties.

11.5 Mandatory national law

Nothing in this Consortium Agreement shall be deemed to require a Party to breach any mandatory statutory law under which the Party is operating.

11.6 Language

This Consortium Agreement is drawn up in English, which language shall govern all documents, notices, meetings, arbitral proceedings and processes relative thereto.

11.7 Applicable law

This Consortium Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of Ireland excluding its conflict of law provisions.

11.8 Settlement of disputes

The parties shall endeavour to settle their disputes amicably.

Any dispute, controversy or claim arising under, out of or relating to this contract and any subsequent amendments of this contract, including, without limitation, its formation, validity, binding effect, interpretation, performance, breach or termination, as well as non-contractual claims, shall be submitted to mediation in accordance with the WIPO Mediation Rules. The place of mediation shall be Brussels unless otherwise agreed upon. The language to be used in the mediation shall be English unless otherwise agreed upon.

If, and to the extent that, any such dispute, controversy or claim has not been settled pursuant to the mediation within 60 calendar days of the commencement of the mediation, the courts of Brussels shall have exclusive jurisdiction.

12 Section Signatures

AS WITNESS:

The Parties have caused this Consortium Agreement to be duly signed by the undersigned authorised representatives in separate signature pages the day and year first above written.

Social Innovation Growth Fund Ireland



Name Deirdre Mordell
Title CEO

Date 29/6/2021 | 4:21 PM BST

Bulgarian Center For-Not-Profit Law

Signature



Name Nadya Shabani Title Director

Date 29/6/2021 | 8:59 AM PDT

SYNTHESIS Center for Research and Education Ltd

Signature



Name George Isaias

Title Director

Date 30/6/2021 | 8:18 AM BST

The Change Foundation



Name Kajsa Margareta Lennhammar Korsgren Title Executive Director

Date 1/7/2021 | 12:45 AM PDT

Genio Trust

Signature



Name Madeleine Clarke
Title Executive Director

Date 9/7/2021 | 4:51 PM BST

Agência para o Desenvolvimento e Coesão, I.P. (Cohesion and Development Agency)

Signature

Docusigned by:

Name: Nuno Manuel Oliveira dos Santos

Title: President

Date 14/7/2021 | 2:58 PM BST

BCause Foundation

Signature



Name Elitsa Barakova
Title Executive Director

Date 15/7/2021 | 12:43 PM CEST

Cleantech Bulgaria Ltd.

Signature

—Docusigned by:

Mariyana Hamanova

701153530387422

Name Mariyana Hamanova

Title Executive Director

Date 15/7/2021 | 10:49 AM PDT

The Business Institute

Signature DocuSigned by:

Tyuttuna tuwa

02671789ED91434...

Name Tzvetelina Teneva Title General Manager

Date 16/7/2021 | 10:31 AM BST

Centre for Social Innovation

Signature

Demetris Hadjisofocli
468139C7B9DD4A4...

Name Demetris Hadjisofocli Title Managing Director

Date 16/7/2021 | 1:07 PM BST

Attachment 1: Background included

Background is defined as "data, know-how or information that is needed to implement the action or exploit the results". Because of this need, Access Rights have to be granted in principle, but Parties must identify and agree amongst them on the Background for the project. This is the purpose of this attachment.

PARTY 1 Rethink Ireland

As to Rethink Ireland, it is agreed between the Parties that, to the best of their knowledge, the following background is hereby identified and agreed upon for the Project. Specific limitations and/or conditions, shall be as mentioned hereunder:

| Describe Background | Specific limitations and/or conditions for implementation | Specific limitations and/or conditions for Exploitation |
|---|--|---|
| Rethink Ireland will provide access to the expertise on investment readiness and capacity building supports as well as knowledge on impact measurement as required for the Project. | Access Right to Background is only granted to the extent that it is needed for implementation of the action. | Access Right to Background is only granted to the extent that said Background is needed for exploitation and is not subject to terms and conditions in other agreements that may prohibit the desired Access Right. |

This represents the status at the time of signature of this Consortium Agreement.

PARTY 2 Bulgarian Center for Not-for-Profit Law

| Describe Background | Specific limitations and/or conditions for implementation | Specific limitations and/or conditions for Exploitation |
|--|--|---|
| BCNL will provide access to the expertise on capacity building approach, and knowledge on advocacy strategy and campaigning in the area of social entrepreneurship as required for the Project. | Access Right to Background is only granted to the extent that it is needed for implementation of the action. | Access Right to Background is only granted to the extent that said Background is needed for exploitation and is not subject to terms and conditions in other agreements or national legislation that may prohibit the desired Access Right. |

This represents the status at the time of signature of this Consortium Agreement.

PARTY 3 SYNTHESIS Center for Research and Education Ltd

| Describe Background | Specific limitations and/or conditions for implementation | Specific limitations and/or conditions for Exploitation |
|--|--|---|
| SYNTHESIS will provide its expertise in social entrepreneurship / social innovation in Cyprus and undertake to lead or participate in actions as required for the Project. | Access Right to Background is only granted to the extent that it is needed for implementation of the action. | Access Right to Background is only granted to the extent that said Background is needed for exploitation and is not subject to terms and conditions in other agreements that may prohibit the desired Access Right. |

This represents the status at the time of signature of this Consortium Agreement.

PARTY 4 - The Change Foundation

| Describe Background | Specific limitations and/or conditions for implementation | Specific limitations and/or conditions for Exploitation |
|--|--|---|
| The Change Foundation will provide expertise on capacity building approaches for building an impact ecosystem and for the support and the development of management skills to help social sector organisations and entrepreneurs to successfully implement a social innovation project, as required for the project. | Access Right to Background is only granted to the extent that it is needed for implementation of the action. | Access Right to Background is only granted to the extent that said Background is needed for exploitation and is not subject to terms and conditions in other agreements or national legislation that may prohibit the desired Access Right. |

This represents the status at the time of signature of this Consortium Agreement.

PARTY 5 Genio Trust

| Describe Background | Specific limitations and/or conditions for | Specific limitations and/or conditions for Exploitation |
|-----------------------------|--|---|
| | implementation | |
| Genio Trust will provide | Access Right to Background | Access Right to Background |
| expertise on validating | is only granted to the extent | is only granted to the extent |
| innovations for scaling and | that it is needed for | that said Background is |
| guidance on scaling | implementation of the | needed for exploitation and |
| innovations within and | action. | is not subject to terms and |
| across Member States. | | conditions in other |

[©] DESCA - Horizon 2020 Model Consortium Agreement (<u>www.DESCA-2020.eu</u>),

| agreements that may |
|-----------------------------|
| prohibit the desired Access |
| Right. |

This represents the status at the time of signature of this Consortium Agreement.

PARTY 6 Cohesion and Development Agency (AD&C) I.P.

| Describe Background | Specific limitations and/or conditions for implementation | Specific limitations and/or conditions for Exploitation |
|---|--|---|
| ADC together with Portugal Social Innovation will provide access to the expertise and knowledge of using new financing instruments to foster innovation and social investment, in particular European Social Fund to cofinance projects that offer alternative and innovative solutions to solve social problems. As well as capacity building support for building an impact ecosystem or for the development of management skills to help social sector organisations and entrepreneurs to successfully implement a social innovation project, as required for the project. | Access Right to Background is only granted to the extent that it is needed for implementation of the action. | Access Right to Background is only granted to the extent that said Background is needed for exploitation and is not subject to terms and conditions in other agreements that may prohibit the desired Access Right. |

This represents the status at the time of signature of this Consortium Agreement.

PARTY 7 Cleantech Bulgaria

| Describe Background | Specific limitations and/or conditions for | Specific limitations and/or conditions for Exploitation |
|--|--|--|
| Cleantech Bulgaria will provide access to knowledge and networks, strategic support and policy advocacy in the area of social entrepreneurship, as well as | implementation Access Right to Background is only granted to the extent that it is needed for implementation of the action. | Access Right to Background is only granted to the extent that said Background is needed for exploitation and is not subject to terms and conditions in other |
| | action. | |

| approaches and support the building of competences in | prohibit the desired Access Right. |
|---|------------------------------------|
| the social innovation | |
| promoter's organizations and | |
| social entrepreneurs as | |
| required for the Project. | |

This represents the status at the time of signature of this Consortium Agreement.

PARTY 8 BCause Foundation

| Describe Background | Specific limitations and/or conditions for implementation | Specific limitations and/or conditions for Exploitation |
|--|---|---|
| BCause Foundation will provide access to knowledge, networks about the social entrepreneurship ecosystem in the country, and will provide expertise on capacity building approaches in support of development of the competences of social innovation promoters and social enterprises as required by the project. | Access Right to Background is only granted to the extend that it is needed for implementation of the action | Access Right to Background is only granted to the extend that said Background is needed for exploitation and is not subject to terms and conditions in other agreements that may prohibit the desired Access Right. |

This represents the status at the time of signature of this Consortium Agreement.

PARTY 9 The Business Institute

| Describe Background | Specific limitations and/or conditions for implementation | Specific limitations and/or conditions for Exploitation |
|---|---|---|
| The Business Institute will contribute with knowledge and content on sustainable business models for social innovation, business model innovation approaches and methodologies for validation of business models for social innovation. | Access Right to Background is only granted to the extend that it is needed for implementation of the action | Access Right to Background is only granted to the extend that said Background is needed for exploitation and is not subject to terms and conditions in other agreements that may prohibit the desired Access Right. |

PARTY 10 Centre for Social Innovation

| Describe Background | Specific limitations and/or conditions for implementation | Specific limitations and/or conditions for Exploitation |
|--|--|---|
| CSI will provide its expertise in social entrepreneurship / social innovation in Cyprus and undertake to lead or participate in actions as required for the Project. | Access Right to Background is only granted to the extent that it is needed for implementation of the action. | Access Right to Background is only granted to the extent that said Background is needed for exploitation and is not subject to terms and conditions in other agreements that may prohibit the desired Access Right. |

This represents the status at the time of signature of this Consortium Agreement.

AFFILIATED ENTITY: Portugal Social Innovation Mission Unit

| Describe Background | Specific limitations and/or conditions for implementation | Specific limitations and/or conditions for Exploitation |
|---|--|---|
| Portugal Social Innovation under the direct management of ADC will provide access to the expertise and knowledge of using new financing instruments to foster innovation and social investment, in particular European Social Fund to co-finance projects that offer alternative and innovative solutions to solve social problems. As well as capacity building support for building an impact ecosystem or for the development of management skills to help social sector organisations and entrepreneurs to successfully implement a social innovation project, as required for the project. | Access Right to Background is only granted to the extent that it is needed for implementation of the action. | Access Right to Background is only granted to the extent that said Background is needed for exploitation and is not subject to terms and conditions in other agreements that may prohibit the desired Access Right. |

This represents the status at the time of signature of this Consortium Agreement.

Attachment 2: Accession document

ACCESSION

of a new Party to

[Acronym of the Project] Consortium Agreement, version [..., YYYY-MM-DD]

[OFFICIAL NAME OF THE NEW PARTY AS IDENTIFIED IN THE Grant Agreement]

hereby consents to become a Party to the Consortium Agreement identified above and accepts all the rights and obligations of a Party starting [date].

[OFFICIAL NAME OF THE COORDINATOR AS IDENTIFIED IN THE Grant Agreement]

hereby certifies that the consortium has accepted in the meeting held on [date] the accession of [the name of the new Party] to the consortium starting [date].

This Accession document has been done in 2 originals to be duly signed by the undersigned authorised representatives.

[Date and Place]

[INSERT NAME OF THE NEW PARTY]

Signature(s)

Name(s)

Title(s)

[Date and Place]

[INSERT NAME OF THE COORDINATOR]

Signature(s)

Name(s)

Title(s)